
 

CITY OF CORONA 
DEPARTMENT OF WATER & POWER 
=============================================== 

 

 

 

June 17, 2021 

 

 

SUBJECT: Notice Inviting Bids No. 21-082CA 

 

Addendum No. 1 

Potable Water & Wastewater Treatment Chemicals 
 

This Addendum No. 1 to the subject Notice Inviting Bids provides answers to questions received.  

Please note the bid due date and time have not changed. 

All provisions of this Addendum No. 1 are hereby incorporated by reference into the subject NIB.  

Bidders shall account for all provisions pursuant to this Addendum No. 1 in submitting their bids.  

Each bidder shall acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in their Bid in the spaces provided 

therein.  

1. Questions & Answers: 

 

1.1 Question: “Who is the current anionic polymer vendor at Temescal Desalter 

Plant?  What is the product name and current price?  What 

application is the anionic polymer being used for at Temescal 

Desalter Plant?” 

 

 Response: Polymer is not used at the Temescal Desalter. 

 

 

1.2 Question: “Who is you current cationic and anionic supplier for Water 

Reclamation and Water Treatment Facilities?” 

 

 Response: Water Reclamation:  

Anionic supplier – Solenis.  Cationic supplier – Aqua Ben and 

Solenis 

Potable Water Treatment: 

Cationic- Polydyne 

Anionic- Aqua Ben 

 

 

1.3 Question: Please provide the product names for the cationic and anionic 

polymers. 

 

 Response: Water Reclamation: 

Belt Press / Centrifuge Cationic Polymer (Aqua Ben 750 L)  

GBT Cationic Polymer (Praestol K 275 FLX)  
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Primary Clarifier Anionic Polymer (Praestol A 3040 LTR 

Potable Water Treatment: 

Pretreatment- C308P 

Gravity thickener- Hydrofloc 534P 

 

 

1.4 Question: “What are the dosages of cationic and anionic polymer?” 

 

 Response: Water Reclamation: 

Anionic – 0.5 gallons per hour 

GBT Cationic – ~1 gallons per hour 

Centrifuge Cationic - ~5 gallons per hour 

Potable Water Treatment: 

Cationic- 0.75 mg/l 

Anionic - .50 mg/l 

 

 

1.5 Question: “In the Bid Evaluation section for Water Reclamation and Water 

Treatment Facilities, please provide what the minimum desired 

results are for cationic and anionic polymers.” 

 

 Response: Water Reclamation: 

Anionic polymer – increased non-soluble BOD removal and non-

soluble TSS removal from primary clarifiers to meet permit 

requirements. 

Cationic polymer – to produce thickened sludge and increase solids 

capacity in digesters; to produce dewatered centrifuge cake of 18% 

TS or greater.   

Potable Water Treatment: 

0.05 NTU in post filter effluent 

 

 

1.6 Question: “In the Bid/Price form section, will the dose rate come from the 

vendor jar test results?” 

 

 Response: They will be used as a guide for both water reclamation and potable 

water treatment.  Flow rates may change based upon demand 

changes, and accordingly, the dose rates will also need to change 

from time to time to accommodate for process/flow changes.   

 

 

1.7 Question: “Since the vendor is required to submit one (1) liter bid product 

samples, will the City conduct its own jar test to determine the dose 

rate that meet the minimum desired results?” 
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 Response: Bidders will conduct the jar testing. 

. 

 

1.8 Question: “What type of applications are being used at the Temescal 

Desalter?” 

 

 Response: Pre- sulfuric acid and threshold inhibitor 

Post- caustic soda, sodium hypochlorite, ammonium hydroxide and 

polyphosphate 

 

 

1.9 Question: “Please provide the product names and current prices for the scale 

and corrosion inhibitors.” 

 

 Response: Sulfuric Acid and Kinglee pretreat 0100 plus 

 

 

1.10 Question: “Please provide the product names and current prices for the scale 

and corrosion inhibitors.” 

 

 Response: Sulfuric Acid 

Threshold Inhibitor 

. 

 

1.11 Question: “I just wanted to confirm the bid will be open to the public amid 

COVID-19 restriction.   If not, how soon can we get the bid results 

after the bid opening?” 

 

 Response: The bid will be open to the public amid COVID-19 restriction.  

Bidders will be notified by email with the bid results for each 

chemical.  There will not be an official public bid opening as bids 

are to be submitted electronically through PlanetBids. 

 

 

1.12 Question: “Who is the supplier and the current pricing for the cationic and 

anionic polymers? Can you provide the bid tabulation from the last 

bid?” 

 

 Response: Water Reclamation: 

Belt Press / Centrifuge Cationic Polymer (750 L) – Aqua Ben 

$63,500 per 5000-gallon bulk load.   

GBT Cationic Polymer (Praestol K 275 FLX) – Solenis / $58,800 

per 5,000-gallon bulk load, $3200 per 275-gallon tote.   

Primary Clarifier Anionic Polymer (Praestol A 3040 LTR) – Solenis / 

$59,000 per 5000-gallon bulk load.   
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Potable Water Treatment: 

Cationic polymer - Polydyne- $0.76/lb 

Anionic polymer - Aqua Ben- $1.47/lb 

 

 

1.13 Question: “Are one year option year renewals based on mutual agreement with 

Supplier and City?” 

 

 Response: Yes 

 

 

1.14 Question: “Who are your suppliers and price for the following chemicals:  

Sodium Hypochlorite, Caustic Soda, Polymer, Aluminums Sulfate, 

Ammonium Hydroxide, Ferric and Polymer?” 

 

 Response: Sodium Hypochlorite – Olin / $4000 per 5000-gallon bulk load. 

Caustic Soda – n/a 

Aluminum Sulfate – Aqua Ben / $2715 per 275-gallon tote. 

Ammonium Hydroxide – N/A 

Ferric Chloride – California Water Technologies / $5300 per 5000-

gallon bulk load. 

Belt Press / Centrifuge Cationic Polymer (750 L) – Aqua Ben 

$63,500 per 5000-gallon bulk load.   

GBT Cationic Polymer (Praestol K 275 FLX) – Solenis / $58,800 

per 5,000-gallon bulk load, $3200 per 275-gallon tote.   

Primary Clarifier Anionic Polymer (Praestol A 3040 L) – Solenis / 

$59,000 per 5000-gallon bulk load.   

Sodium Bisulfite – UNIVAR / $4750 per 5000-gallon bulk load. 

Antiscalant- Kinglee Tech - $9.45/gal 

Cationic polymer-Polydyne - $0.76/lb 

Alum- Thatcher - $0.13/lb 

Ammonia - Airgas - $0.13/lb 

Sulfuric Acid - Univar - $0.12/lb 

Caustic Soda - JCI Jones - $1.48/gal 

Sodium Hypochlorite - Olin- $1.02/gal 

 

 

1.15 Question: “Can you post the last bid tab for this?” 

 

 Response: No. Please submit a Public Records Request through the Corona 

City Clerk’s office to receive this information. 

 

 

1.16 Question: “May I get the current supplier/price for Aluminum Sulfate and 

Ferric Chloride, please?” 
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 Response: Water Reclamation: 

Aluminum Sulfate – Aqua Ben / $2715 per 275-gallon tote 

Ferric Chloride – California Water Technologies / ~$5300 per 5000-

gallon bulk load 

Potable Water Treatment: 

Aluminum Sulfate- Thatcher- $0.13/lb 

. 

 

1.17 Question: “The Corrosion and Scale inhibitor references 2 tote deliveries.  Are 

the totes dropped off at site or are they pumped off into a tank on 

site?” 

 

 Response: There is one delivery location, Temescal Desalter. The totes are 

dropped off at site. 

. 

 

1.18 Question: “Will there be a public opening? If yes, will this be available via 

conference call or a virtual meeting online?” 

 

 Response: No 

 

 

1.19 Question: “Can you post the last bid tab for this?” 

 

 Response: No. Please submit a Public Records Request through the Corona 

City Clerk’s office to receive this information. 

 

 

1.20 Question: “Who is supplying each product?” 

 

 Response: Sodium Hypochlorite – Olin / $4000 per 5000-gallon bulk load. 

Caustic Soda – n/a 

Aluminum Sulfate – Aqua Ben / $2715 per 275-gallon tote. 

Ammonium Hydroxide – N/A 

Ferric Chloride – California Water Technologies / $5300 per 5000-

gallon bulk load. 

Belt Press / Centrifuge Cationic Polymer (750 L) – Aqua Ben 

$63,500 per 5000-gallon bulk load.   

GBT Cationic Polymer (Praestol K 275 FLX) – Solenis / $58,800 

per 5,000-gallon bulk load, $3200 per 275-gallon tote.   

Primary Clarifier Anionic Polymer (Praestol A 3040 L) – Solenis / 

$59,000 per 5000-gallon bulk load.   

Sodium Bisulfite – UNIVAR / $4750 per 5000-gallon bulk load. 

Antiscalant- Kinglee Tech- $9.45/gal 

Cationic polymer - Polydyne-  $0.76/lb 

Alum – Thatcher - $0.13/lb 
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Ammonia - Airgas- $0.13/lb 

Sulfuric Acid – Univar - $0.12/lb 

Caustic Soda - JCI Jones -$1.48/gal 

Sodium Hypochlorite – Olin - $1.02/gal 

 

1.21 Question: “What are you current paying for each product?” 

 

 Response: Refer to the response provided for Question 1.20. 

 

 

1.22 Question: “We will be submitting samples of our Alum and Acid Alum for the 

current bid. We use a 1 liter Nalgene bottle typically. Can we use 

this style container to send our Alum to you? If not, we can see 

about expediting glass bottles and sending prior to bid opening on 

6/28?” 

 

 Response: Nalgene is acceptable. 

. 

 

1.23 Question: Please can you kindly let me know if we need to bid on the entire 

bid line items for potable water and wastewater treatment 

chemicals? Or can we bid on single line items? 

 

 Response: Bidders may bid on any line items and do not need to bid on all line 

items. 

 

 

1.24 Question: As your incumbent supplier (Olin) for sodium hypochlorite do we 

still need to submit a sample?  

 

 Response: No 

 

 

1.25 Question: “Who are the current suppliers and pricing for all the chemicals?” 

 

 Response: Refer to the response provided for Question 1.20. 

. 

 

1.26 Question: “In the bid pricing package for the waste water chemicals there is 

only one spot for cationic polymer. There are two potential polymers 

to be bid, Centrifuge and GBT. Please advise.” 

 

 Response: There are two polymers GBT for thickening, Centrifuge for 

dewatering. Please provide a price for each. 
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1.27 Question: “For the waste water chemical bid, there is a requirement for 

independent 3rd party certificate of analysis of the cationic and 

anionic polymer samples. This is an unknown test for the local labs 

we have spoken with. Can we for polyacrylamide only, provide the 

manufacturing COA only?” 

 

 Response: Yes 

 

 

1.28 Question: “May I get the current supplier/price for Aluminum Sulfate and 

Ferric Chloride, please?” 

 

 Response: Ferric Chloride supplier is California Water Technologies.  Refer to 

the response to Question 1.20 for pricing information. 

 

 

1.29 Question: “Who is the incumbent of Sulfuric Acid 93%?” 

 

 Response: Univar. 

 

 

1.30 Question: “Who is the incumbent of Sodium Hydroxide 25%?” 

 

 Response: JCI Jones 

 

 

1.31 Question: “Who is the incumbent of Aluminum Sulfate 48%?” 

 

 Response: Thatcher 

 

 

1.32 Question: “What is the current price of Sulfuric Acid 93%?” 

 

 Response: Refer to the response to Question 1.20 for pricing information. 

 

 

1.33 Question: “What is the current price of Sodium Hydroxide 25%?” 

 

 Response: Refer to the response to Question 1.20 for pricing information. 

 

 

1.34 Question: “Is it necessary for bid consideration to send a sample for each 

product being bid?” 

 

 Response: Samples are required for all chemicals being bid except Sulfuric 

Acid. 
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1.35 Question: “Can a supplier supply a product specification instead of a sample?” 

 

 Response: No 

 

 

1.36 Question: “Can a supplier sign a statement attesting to the product 

specification?” 

 

 Response: No 

 

 

1.37 Question: “Who is the incumbent for Aluminum Sulfate 43.65% & 10% 

Acidified?” 

 

 Response: Refer to the response to Question 1.20. 

 

 

1.38 Question: “What is the current price for Aluminum Sulfate 43.65% & 10% 

Acidified?” 

 

 Response: Refer to the response to Question 1.20. 

 

 

1.39 Question: “Will you post the full bid results from last year?” 

 

 Response: No 

 

 

  Carol Appelt 

______________________________ 

Carol Appelt 

Purchasing Specialist V 

City of Corona  

400 South Vicentia Avenue, Suite 320 

Corona, CA  92882 

Remote: 951-395-1941  ‖  Office: 951-279-3620 

Email:  carolyn.appelt@coronaca.gov 
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June 22, 2021 

 

 

SUBJECT: Notice Inviting Bids No. 21-082CA 

 

Addendum No. 2 

Potable Water & Wastewater Treatment Chemicals 
 

This Addendum No. 2 to the subject Notice Inviting Bids provides answers to questions received.  

Please note the bid due date and time have not changed.  The City anticipates issuing a third 

addendum to answer additional questions not included in this Addendum 2. 

All provisions of this Addendum No. 2 are hereby incorporated by reference into the subject NIB.  

Bidders shall account for all provisions pursuant to this Addendum No. 2 in submitting their bids.  

Each bidder shall acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in their Bid in the spaces provided 

therein.  

1. Questions & Answers: 

 

1.40 Question: “As the incumbent supplier (Polydyne) of cationic polymer for water 

treatment, do we still need to submit a sample of this product?” 

 

 Response: No 

 

 

1.41 Question: “Are PET jars with Polypropylene caps acceptable for submitting 

polymer samples? We transitioned from glass approximately two 

years ago and would have to order glass containers?” 

 

 Response: Yes, PET jars with Polypropylene caps are acceptable. 

 

 

1.42 Question: “Who is the current supplier of the Liquid Aluminum Sulfate 

48.5%?” 

 

 Response: Thatcher 

 
 

1.43 Question: “Who is the current supplier of the 10% Acid Aluminum Sulfate?” 

 

Response: Thatcher 

 
 



 

Potable Water & Wastewater Treatment Chemicals 

NIB 21-082CA 

Addendum 2 

Page 2 of 4 

 

1.44 Question: “At what price is the Liquid Aluminum Sulfate 48.5% currently 

being purchased at?” 

 

Response: $0.13/lb 

 

 

1.45 Question: “At what price is the 10% Acid Aluminum Sulfate currently being 

purchased at?” 

 

 Response: $0.13/lb 

 

 

1.46 Question: “Does a bidder have to request a polymer sludge and water samples 

to qualify?” 

 

 Response: Yes 

 

 

1.47 Question: “Is the estimated volume of 15,000 gallons for Aluminum Sulfate 

48.5% used year round or just in the summer months?” 

 

 Response: Year round 

 

 

1.48 Question: “On page 6 of 10 in Section V - Price Form, a Dose rate is requested 

as _________ ml/m________.  What are the units requested?  If the 

units are milliliter per minute, what is the flow rate, since the 

amount of water being treated per minute would need to be known?  

A flow rate is also needed for determination of Dose rate for the 

wastewater treatment polymers as well.” 

 

 Response: Water Reclamation and Potable Water Treatment should both read: 

 _________ mg/l ________. 

 

Water Reclamation:   

Flows vary. Average centrifuge flow = 70 GPM 

Average flow to GBT = 350 GPM 

Primary influent flow through plant 1A = 5.5 MGD 

 

1.49 Question: “Can the third party certificate of analysis be removed from the bid, 

as it does not change product dosage or performance?” 

 

 Response: No 
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1.50 Question: “Can bulk delivery time be extended from 10 days to 15 days to 

deliver for Cationic Polymer for Potable Water Treatment?” 

 

 Response: No 

 

 

1.51 Question: “If a bidder is not located in the City of Corona, should we just 

indicate that the Local Bidder Preference Program Statement is not 

applicable and submit with bid or sign it in addition to indicating 

that it is not applicable?” 

 

 Response: The Local Bidder Preference form is only applicable to bidders that 

are “local businesses” with fixed facilities with one or more 

employees which may include a sole proprietor, located at an 

address within City limits (post office box alone is insufficient); and 

(ii) an appropriate City business license.  Only bidders that qualify 

for the program are required to complete and provide the Local 

Bidder Preference form with their bid.  The “required form” status 

from all bidders for the Local Bidder Preference form in PlanetBids 

has been eliminated. 

 

 

1.52 Question: “What is the minimum delivery quantity for hypo for any one 

individual ship-to site?” 

 

 Response: Water Reclamation:  

500 gallons to Water Reclamation Facility 3. 

 

  Potable Water Treatment:   

No minimum, however on multiple stop deliveries, City will keep 

the loads 4000-5000 gallons. 

 

 

1.53 Question: “There is a conflict in accounting for sales tax in the bid.  One 

section says bid pricing should “exclude sales taxes”.    The pricing 

sheets say, “all costs including sales tax” shall be in unit pricing.  

Which should it be?” 

 

 Response: Chemicals that remain in the water (sodium hypochlorite, 

ammonium hydroxide, corrosion inhibitor (polyphosphate) are non 

taxable, all the rest are taxable.   

 

 

1.54 Question: “For the polymer products, including the cationic polymer for 

potable water treatment, is the manufacturer's certificate of analysis 

acceptable for the bid submittal in addition to accompanying 
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deliveries?  Third party labs that do not work with polymers do not 

have the equipment to conduct the necessary tests.” 

 

 Response: Yes, as long as a sample is provided. 

 

 

1.55 Question: “As your incumbent supplier (JCI) for Sodium Hydroxide 25%, do 

we still need to submit a sample?” 

 

 Response: No  

 

 

 

  Carol Appelt 

______________________________ 

Carol Appelt 

Purchasing Specialist V 

City of Corona  

400 South Vicentia Avenue, Suite 320 

Corona, CA  92882 

Remote: 951-395-1941  ‖  Office: 951-279-3620 

Email:  carolyn.appelt@coronaca.gov 



 

 

 
CITY OF CORONA 
DEPARTMENT OF WATER & POWER 
=============================================== 

 

 

 

June 23, 2021 

 

 

SUBJECT: Notice Inviting Bids No. 21-082CA 

 

Addendum No. 3 

Potable Water & Wastewater Treatment Chemicals 
 

This Addendum No. 3 to the subject Notice Inviting Bids provides answers to questions received 

and revised bid forms.  Please note the bid due date and time have not changed. 

All provisions of this Addendum No. 3 are hereby incorporated by reference into the subject NIB.  

Bidders shall account for all provisions pursuant to this Addendum No. 3 in submitting their bids.  

Each bidder shall acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in their Bid in the spaces provided 

therein.  

1. Questions & Answers: 

 

1.52 Question: “Annual Renewal Pricing;  Annual industrial bulk chemical costs of 

bleach have little to do with the CPI index.  The Producer Price 

index actually has an index WUP0 for chlorine and alkali chemicals.  

Would you consider using this for annual cost reviews for hypo?  If 

not, then annual renewal options should be upon mutual agreement 

of both parties.” 

 

 Response: The CPI index will be utilized as the base from which negotiations 

will take place to determine a mutually agreed upon renewal price 

for option years. 

 

 

1.53 Question: “Insurance; Contractor’s Pollution coverage is typically for 

building/construction/maintenance contractors, not chemical 

deliveries.  Requiring contractors’ pollution coverage will add much 

higher costs to bid selling prices and is not necessary for this type 

service. Will transportation pollution liability coverage (sudden and 

accidental liability) covering transportation and offloading safely 

into customer storage tanks suffice? Will taking exception to 

Contractor’s Pollution coverage deem bids non-responsive?” 

 

Response: The City is removing the Contractor’s Pollution Liability insurance 

requirement from the bid.  The Pollution Transportation Liability 

insurance remains a bid requirement. 
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1.56 Question: “Would you please clarify once again the trade name for the 

Corrosion Scale Inhibitor and who your current supplier is?  Also, 

can you provide product specs required? Thank you.” 

 

 Response: Aquapure 3655 provided by Brenntag.  Please refer to Exhibit “A” 

attached hereto for the product spec. 

 

 

1.59 Question: “Does California Mill Assessment need to be included in the bid 

price?” 

 

Response: Bidders are to include all applicable fees and assessments in their 

unit cost bid price and exclude California Sales Tax.   

 

 

1.60 Question: “Are renewals upon mutual agreement?  Are there any price 

adjustment rules?” 

 

 

 Response: The CPI index will be utilized as the base from which negotiations 

will take place to determine a mutually agreed upon renewal price 

for option years. 

 

 

2. Bid and Contract Documents: 

 

2.01 Section II. Instruction to Bidders, Subsection N.4(A) Insurance Requirements is 

hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

 

(A)  Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least as broad as the 

latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance Services 

Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); 

(2) Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage 

form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto), or if Contractor has no owned 

autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned); (3) Workers’ Compensation and 

Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the 

State of California and Employer’s Liability Insurance; and (4) 

Transportation Pollution Liability: Transportation Pollution Liability 

insurance covering materials to be transported. 

 

2.02 Section II. Instructions to Bidders, Subsection N.5(C) Insurance Endorsements 

(Contractor’s Pollution Liability) is hereby deleted in its entirety.  

 

2.03 Section IV. Bid Content & Forms, Insurance Requirements Check List is hereby 

deleted in its entirety and replaced with the Revised Insurance Requirements Check 

List form attached hereto. 
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2.04 Section V. Bid/Price Form.  The Bid/Price Form is hereby deleted in its entirety 

and replaced with the Revised Bid/Price Form attached hereto.  Please note the 

City is requesting that all bidders submit their unit pricing excluding sales tax 

for all chemicals. 

 

 

 

  Carol Appelt 

______________________________ 

Carol Appelt 

Purchasing Specialist V 

City of Corona  

400 South Vicentia Avenue, Suite 320 

Corona, CA  92882 

Remote: 951-395-1941  ‖  Office: 951-279-3620 

Email:  carolyn.appelt@coronaca.gov 

 

mailto:carolyn.appelt@coronaca.gov
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REVISED CITY OF CORONA 

NIB NO. 21-082CA INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS CHECK LIST 

(To be Completed and Submitted with Bid) 

 
All applicable insurance requirements are identified with a ‘YES’ under the “Applicable to 

Vendor” column. Indicate Yes or No below if you are able to comply with the requirement.  

 YES NO 
Applicable to 

Vendor 

Can your company provide General Liability - $2M occurrence     YES 

Can your company provide Automobile Liability - bodily injury and property damage - $2M?     YES 

Can your company provide Workers Compensation and Employer's Liability - $1M?     YES 

Can your company provide Errors and Omissions (Professional) Liability Insurance - $1M 
occurrence/$2M aggregate? 

    
Not 

Applicable 

Can your company provide Technology Professional Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance 
- $2M occurrence or $2M aggregate? 

    
Not 

Applicable 

Can your company provide Builders'/All Risk for the completed value of the project naming 
the City as the loss payee? 

    
Not 

Applicable 

Can your company provide Transportation Pollution Liability with minimum limits of $2 
million/$4 million with a primary Additional Insured endorsement? 

    
YES 

Can your company provide coverage with an insurer with a current A. M. Best’s rating no 
less than (A-):VII and licensed as an admitted insurance carrier in California?      YES 

Can your company provide coverage with an insurer with a current A. M. Best’s rating no 
less than (A-):X and authorized to issue the required policies in California?      YES 

 
Insurance Endorsements 

General Liability 

 YES NO 
Applicable to  

Vendor 

(Occurrence form CG 0001)     YES 

Will your company provide an insurance policy that states the City, its directors, officials, 
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with 
respect to liability arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the 
Contractor, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection therewith? 

    

YES 

Will your company provide an insurance policy that states any person or organization whom 
you have agreed to include as an additional insured under a written contract? provided such 
contract was executed prior to the date of loss? 

    
YES 

Can your company provide Completed Operations as evidenced with the following 
endorsements? 

    
YES 

Endorsement form CG 20 10 11 85 OR     YES 

CG 20 37 and one of the following     YES 

CG 20 10     

YES 
 

CG 20 26     

CG 20 33     

CG 20 38     
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Will your company provide a General Liability endorsement stating that the insurance 
coverage shall be primary any City insurance will be in excess of the contractors’ insurance 
and will not be called upon to contribute Endorsement Form shall be as broad as CG 20 01 
04 13?     YES 

 
Automobile Liability 

    

 YES NO 
Applicable to 

Vendor 

Does your insurance cover Owned automobiles with Form number CA 0001 code 1 (Any 
Auto)? 

    
YES 

If your company does not have owned automobiles, does your insurance cover No owned 
autos Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned)? 

    
YES 

 
  

 

Workers' Compensation 

 YES NO 
Applicable to 

Vendor 

Will your company provide a waiver for all rights of subrogation against the City, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the 
terms of the insurance policy which arise from work or Services performed by the 
Contractor? 

  

YES 

Will your company provide a Waiver of Subrogation – All Other Policies. Contractor hereby 
waives all rights of subrogation any insurer of Contractor’s may acquire against the City, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the 
terms of any insurance policy which arise from work or Services performed by the 
Contractor? 

    

YES 

Will your insurance policies have a (30) days' notice of cancellation endorsement?     YES 

If your firm is unable to provide a (30) day notice of cancellation will your firm sign a City 
provided statement that the Vendor shall notify the City within two business days any notice 
of cancellation?     YES 

Does your insurance have any deductibles and/or self-insurance retentions?     YES 

 

 

Transportation Pollution Liability  

 YES NO 
Applicable to 

Vendor 

Will you provide an Automobile Liability policy endorsement that includes Transportation 
Pollution Liability or separate Transportation Pollution Liability policy with an endorsement 
covering the material to be transported?    

Will your insurance policies have a (30) days' notice of cancellation endorsement?     YES 

If your firm is unable to provide a (30) day notice of cancellation will your firm sign a City 
provided statement that the Vendor shall notify the City within two business days any notice 
of cancellation?     YES 

Does your insurance have any deductibles and/or self-insurance retentions?     YES 

 

 

 

Use the space below to explain any "NO" responses.      
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Potable Water & Wastewater Treatment Chemicals 

NIB 21-082CA 

Addendum 3 

Page 7 of 16 

SECTION V.  

 

REVISED BID / PRICE FORM 

 

 

NOTICE INVITING BIDS:  NIB 21-082CA 

 

DESCRIPTION:   Potable Water & Wastewater Treatment Chemicals 

 

BIDDER’S NAME/ADDRESS:  

 

 

      

 

 

      

NAME/TELEPHONE NO. OF   

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

      

 

 

 

ANNUAL PURCHASE ORDER 

 

The initial Purchase Order Period shall be effective on or about July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 

with four (1) one year option renewal periods on an as-needed basis with no guarantee of usage for 

Potable Water & Wastewater Chemicals.  Bid prices shall remain effective and in force for the 

entire Initial Purchase Order Period.  Subsequent purchase order periods, if exercised by the City, 

are as follows:   

 

Option 1, if exercised, shall be effective July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 

Option 2, if exercised, shall be effective July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 

Option 3, if exercised, shall be effective July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 

Option 4, if exercised, shall be effective July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026 

 

Option year pricing shall be negotiated by the Parties prior to commencement of each additional 

one-year period.  Negotiated price adjustments will be made in accordance with and shall not 

exceed the percentage of change in the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price 

Index “All Urban Consumers for Riverside, California, Area (CPI-U), not seasonally adjusted, for 

the most recent twelve (12) months for which statistics are available.  This method of price 

adjustment shall apply to each extension period exercised.  Option years shall become effective 

only upon issuance by the City of a duly authorized Purchase Order. 
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Bidders may submit bids for one or more bulk chemicals, but each bulk chemical must be 

bid individually and submitted in accordance with the Submission of Bids subsection in the 

Instructions to Bidders, Section II.E.   
 

No person, organization, or corporation is allowed to make, submit, or be interested in more than 

one Bid unless in a sub-contractual relationship with respect to the Bids. A person, organization 

or corporation submitting sub-proposals or quoting prices on materials to Bidders is 

prevented from submitting a Bid to the City as a primary bidder. 

 

Provide Firm Fixed Price cost information in the spaces provided below for each chemical bid, and 

any other incidental or additional costs required to complete the specifications pursuant to Section 

III herein.  In the event that bidder intends to bid zero dollar value for any item shown in the 

Bid/Price Form, bidder shall enter “zero” or “0” in the space provided for price or cost.   

 

Unit prices shall include all costs, except California State sales tax, including but not limited to 

materials, supplies, labor, equipment, certification fees, delivery, transportation, mill assessments 

where applicable, and ancillary costs for performing under the scope and specifications of this 

NIB. 

 

1. SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE (NaOCl) 12.5% 

Estimated Annual Quantity 1,000,000 Gallons 

 

Quantity Delivered Price – Per Gallon 

2,000 – 4,999 gallon delivery  $      

5,000 gallon delivery $     

Manufacturer’s Name:         

 

Brand Name:           

 

Manufacturer’s Address:         

 

          
 
 

Optional Carrier Stop Charge for Split Delivery Points 

 

Charge for multiple delivery points combined in a single order to attain minimum 5,000 

gallon delivered price.  Carrier Stop Charge would apply only when deliveries are split and 

only to the individual delivery point location(s) not meeting the minimum 5,000 gallon 

order quantity. 
 

$ ______________________ per site not meeting minimum 2,000 gallon quantity 
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2. ALUMINUM SULFATE [Al₂(SO₄)₃] 43.65% & 10% Acidified 

Estimated Annual Quantity 40,000 Gallons 

  

Quantity Delivered Price – Per Gallon 

4,000 gallon delivery  $      

Manufacturer’s Name:         

 

Brand Name:           

 

Manufacturer’s Address:         

 

          

 

 

3. ALUMINUM SULFATE [Al₂(SO4)₃] 48.5% 

Estimated Annual Quantity 15,000 Gallons 

  

Quantity Delivered Price – Per Gallon 

4,000 gallon delivery  $      

Manufacturer’s Name:         

 

Brand Name:           

 

Manufacturer’s Address:         
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4. AMMONIUM HYDROXIDE (NH₄OH) 19% 

 

Estimated Annual Quantity 40,000 Gallons 

 
Quantity  Delivered Price – Per Gallon 

250 – 1,999 gallon delivery  $      

2,000 – 5,000 gallon delivery  $      

Manufacturer’s Name:         

 

Brand Name:           

 

Manufacturer’s Address:         

 

          

 

 

Charge for multiple delivery points combined in a single order to attain minimum 2,000 

gallon delivered price.  Carrier Stop Charge would apply only when deliveries are split and 

only to the individual delivery point location(s) not meeting the minimum 2,000 gallon 

order quantity. 

 

$ ______________________ per site not meeting minimum 2,000 gallon quantity 

 

 

 

5. CORROSION AND SCALE INHIBITOR 

Estimated Annual Quantity 18,000 Gallons 

 

Quantity  Delivered Price – Per Gallon 

275 gallon tote delivery  $      

Manufacturer’s Name:        

Brand Name:           

 

Manufacturer’s Address:         
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6. CATIONIC POLYMER FOR WASTEWATER TREATMENT 

 

Estimated Annual Quantity 40,000 Gallons 

 

Dose rate =________gph_____ 

 Pounds per day required for 24 hour operation=   ______________ 

 Cost per pound     $  /lb 

 

 

Bidders shall enter their formula below for use by City in determining contract value: 

 

______________________________________________________________________________  

 

 

 

 

7. ANIONIC POLYMER FOR WASTEWATER TREATMENT 

 
Estimated Annual Quantity 15,000 Gallons 

 
Dose rate =________gph_____ 

 Pounds per day required for 24 hour operation=   ______________ 

 Cost per pound     $  /lb 

 

 
Bidders shall enter their formula below for use by City in determining contract value: 

 
______________________________________________________________________________  
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8. CATIONIC POLYMER FOR WATER TREATMENT 

 

Estimated Annual Quantity 14,500 Gallons 

 

   500 – 1,999 gal 2000 - 5000 gal 

  Dose rate =________ml/m_____ 

  Pounds per day required for 24 hour operation=   ______________ 

  Cost per pound   $  /lb $  /lb 

  

 

Bidders shall enter their formula below for use by City in determining contract value: 

 

______________________________________________________________________________  

 

 

 

 

 

9. ANIONIC POLYMER FOR WATER TREATMENT 

 

Estimated Annual Quantity 12,500 Gallons 

 

   500 – 1,999 gal 2000 - 5000 gal 

  Dose rate =________ml/m_____ 

  Pounds per day required for 24 hour operation=   ______________ 

  Cost per pound   $  /lb $  /lb 

 

 

Bidders shall enter their formula below for use by City in determining contract value: 

 

______________________________________________________________________________  
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10. SODIUM HYDROXIDE (NaOH) 25% 

Estimated Quantity 30,000 Gallons 

 

Quantity Delivered Price – Per Gallon 

2,000 gallon delivery $    

Manufacturer’s Name:         

 

Brand Name:           

 

Manufacturer’s Address:         

 

          

 

 

11. SULFURIC ACID (H₂SO₄) 93% 

Estimated Quantity 90,000 Gallons 

 

Quantity Delivered Price – Per Gallon 

3,000 gallon delivery $    

Manufacturer’s Name:         

 

Brand Name:           

 

Manufacturer’s Address:         
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12. FERRIC CHLORIDE (FeCl₃) 15%-40% 

Estimated Quantity 55,000 Gallons 

 

 

Quantity Delivered Price 

4,000 gallon delivery $     Per Gallon 

5,000 gallon delivery $     Per Gallon 

 

Manufacturer’s Name:         

 

Brand Name:           

 

Manufacturer’s Address:         

 

          

 

 

13. SODIUM BISULFITE (NaHSO₃)25% 

Estimated Quantity 40,000 Gallons 

 

Quantity Delivered Price – Per Gallon 

4,000-5,000 gallon delivery $    

Manufacturer’s Name:         

 

Brand Name:           

 

Manufacturer’s Address:         
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Please check your calculations before submitting your bid; the City will not be responsible for 

Bidder miscalculations. 

 

With the exception of “Reason(s) for No Bid”, all spaces in the Bid/Price Form shall be filled in 

by bidders. City reserves the right to reject as non-responsive any or all bids containing blank 

spaces. 

 

Bidder's Acknowledgement of his Understanding of the Terms and Conditions. Signature 

below verifies that Bidder has read, understands, and agrees to the conditions contained herein and 

on all of the attachments and addenda.  

 

Are there any other additional or incidental costs which will be required by your firm in order to 

meet the requirements of the Technical Specifications?       Yes   /   No     .  (circle one). If you 

answered “Yes”, please provide detail of said additional costs:  

              

 

              

 

              

 

 

Please indicate any exceptions to or deviations from the NIB Requirements here.  

              

 

              

 

              

Have you included in your bid all informational items and forms as requested? Yes   /   No    . 

(circle one). If you answered “No”, please explain: 

              

 

              

 

              

 

This offer shall remain firm for 90 days from NIB  close date. 

 

Terms and conditions as set forth in this NIB  apply to this bid. 

 

Cash discount allowable          %      days; unless otherwise stated, payment terms are:  Net 30 

days.  

 

In signing this bid, Bidder warrants that all certifications and documents requested herein are 

attached and properly completed and signed.   
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From time to time, the City may issue one or more addenda to this NIB. Below, please indicate all 

Addenda to this NIB received by your firm, and the date said Addenda was/were received.  It is 

the Bidder’s responsibility to ensure that all addendums are received.  Failure to acknowledge 

receipt of addenda may cause the City to reject the bid as non-responsive. 

 

 Verification of Addenda Received  

 

 Addenda No: __________ Received on: _________ 

 Addenda No: __________ Received on: _________ 

 Addenda No: __________ Received on: _________ 

 

 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE:           

 

PRINT SIGNER’S NAME AND TITLE:         

 

 

              

 

DATE SIGNED:            

 

COMPANY NAME & ADDRESS:          

 

              

 

              

 

PHONE:     EMAIL:     

 



AQUAPURE 3655 NSF 

PRODUCT DISTRIBUTED BY / PRODUIT DISTRIBUÉ PAR 

Brenntag Canada Inc. WHMIS Number:  00072211 
43 Jutland Road. Index:  BCI1352/15D 
Toronto, Ontario Effective Date: 2015 December 14 
M8Z 2G6 Date of Revision: 2015 December 14 
(416) 259-8231 Website: http://www.brenntag.ca 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

EMERGENCY TELEPHONE NUMBER (For Emergencies Involving Chemical Spills or Releases) 

1 855 273 6824 

NUMÉRO DE TÉLÉPHONE D’URGENCE (pour les urgences impliquant des rejets ou des déversements chimiques) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

This document consists of an MSDS in English. 

Le présent document comprend une fiche signalétique en anglais. 

WHMIS Classification / Symbol: Not regulated 

Classification / symbole SIMDUT: Non réglementé 

READ THE ENTIRE MSDS FOR THE COMPLETE HAZARD EVALUATION OF THIS PRODUCT. 

LIRE LA FICHE SIGNALÉTIQUE EN ENTIER POUR UNE ÉVALUATION COMPLÈTE DES DANGERS QUE 
REPRÉSENTE CE PRODUIT

Exhibit A
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